Law and Society

A Selected Bibliography

Compiled and Edited by
JOEL B. GROSSMAN and JACK LADINSKY
The University of Wisconsin

CONTENTS

ARTICLES

- 1. Response to Judicial Decisions
- 2. Judicial Administration, Selection, and Education
- 3. Judicial Process and Behavior
- 4. Jurimetrics and Controlled Experiments
- 5. Lawyers, Legal Education, Legal Profession
- 6. Penology, Prevention of Crime, Deterrence
- 7. Police Administration and Criminal Justice
- 8. Law and the Disadvantaged
- 9. Juveniles and the Law
- 10. Law and the Medical Sciences
- 11. Civil Liberties, Civil Rights, Race Relations
- 12. Social Welfare and Related Community Problems
- 13. Social Conflict and Social Control
- 14. Jurisprudence, Legal Process, Behavioral Science Theory
- 15. Administrative Law, Planning, and Politics
- 16. Law, the Economy, and Technology
- 17. Folk and Native Law
- 18. International and Comparative Law
- 19. Law and the Environment

BOOKS

EDITORS' NOTE: The compiling editors express their gratitude to Mary H. Grossman for aid in compiling this bibliography, and to Edith Wilimovsky for editorial assistance.

ARTICLES

- (1) RESPONSE TO JUDICIAL DECISIONS
- (2) JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION, SELECTION, AND EDUCATION
- FEERICK, J. D. (1970) "Impeaching federal judges: a study of the constitutional provisions." Fordham Law Rev. 39 (October).

Examines impeachment provisions of the Constitution: traces their common law and colonial antecedents, explores their development at the Constitutional Convention of 1787, examines twelve cases of impeachment in United States history and offers an interpretation of the constitutional provisions.

(3) JUDICIAL PROCESS AND BEHAVIOR

COHN, S. L. and J. G. BAXTER (1970) "The trial court in the hierarchy of judicial lawmaking: a threshold schema." Georgetown Law J. 59 (October).

Authors attempt to identify and isolate those factors crucial to an analysis of the issue of freedom to make law at the trial level.

LEWIS, O. C. (1970) "Systems theory and judicial behavioralism." Case Western Reserve Law Rev. 21 (April).

A detailed discussion of the use of systems theory in the study of judicial behavioralism with an emphasis on the application of scientific knowledge. Touches on matters relevant to all aspects of intersection of law and science.

- LONDON, H., P. J. MELDMAN, and A. C. LANCKTON (1970) "The jury method: how the persuader persuades." Public Opinion Q. 34 (Summer).

 Uses the jury method to study natural behavior of the persuader in two-person persuasive interaction. Investigation suggests that persuasion is a function of the expression of confidence during the discussion itself.
- VAN DYKE, J. M. (1970) "The jury as a political institution." Catholic Lawyer 16 (Summer).

Analyzes the role of the jury—whether more leeway should be given to juries to override a judge's recommendations if their consciences decree. Suggests that only justification for a jury is that it serves as an additional safeguard to persons accused of committing a crime. At the moment that does not happen.

WETTICH, R. S., Jr., (1970) "A study of the assignment of judges to criminal cases in Allegheny County—the poor fare worse." Duquesne Law Rev. 9 (Fall).

Describes a study which examines the assignment of judges to cases in criminal proceedings before the Criminal Division of the Allegheny County Common Pleas Court to determine if certain private attorneys are able to appear disproportionately before less severe judges.

(4) JURIMETRICS AND CONTROLLED EXPERIMENTS

- (5) LAWYERS, LEGAL EDUCATION, LEGAL PROFESSION
- AUERBACH, C. A. (1970) "Some comments on Mr. Nader's views." Minnesota Law Rev. 54, No. 3.

Answers Nader's criticism of law school education.

CARLIN, J. E. (1970) "Store front lawyers in San Francisco." Trans-action 7 (April).

Examines the San Francisco Neighborhood Legal Assistance Foundation, its goals, successes, and problems. One of the most important issues is the apparent incompatibility of two principal goals of the organization: control by the client community and institutional change.

CHRISTENSON, B. F. (1969) "Regulating group legal services—who is being protected—against what—and why?" Arizona Law Rev. 11 (Spring).

Discusses status of group legal services in light of recent Supreme Court decisions in the area.

DELANY, W. and A. H. FINEGOLD (1970) "Wall Street lawyer in the provinces." Administrative Sci. Q. 15 (June).

Case study of two large firms in Pittsburgh. Finds they are underbureaucratized. Explained in terms of liberal economic and political ideology of lawyers, necessity to mitigate alienation and rivalry in the large law firms and such probable employee responses to further bureaucratization as increased turnover, decreased productivity, and trade unionism.

DONNELL, J. D. (1970) "The corporate counsel and his 'client': use of role analysis to illumine strains in the lawyer-client relationship." Indiana Law J. 45 (Summer).

Investigation involving interviews with 42 corporate counsel and 37 topand middle-level executives from total of 39 companies. Believes that use of role theory and role analysis provides new insights into the relationships involved. GREEN, J. A. and E. S. GREEN (1970) "The legal profession and the process of social change: legal services in England and the United States." Hastings Law J. 21 (January).

Attempts to describe the differences and similarities between the American and English legal aid programs and thereby to highlight their successes and failures in realizing their respective objectives.

KALLEN, L. (1969) "Peremptory challenges based upon juror background—a rational use?" Trial Lawyers Guide (August).

The article was based upon a survey made by the author of fifty Chicago trial lawyers, and came to the conclusion that there is little agreement among practicing lawyers as to the effect of juror background upon juror sympathies.

KINOY, A. (1970) "The role of the radical lawyer and teacher of law: some reflections." Guild Practitioner 29, No. 1.

Discusses the inherent contradictions in being a "radical lawyer" or teacher of law.

MEADOR, C. K. and D. J. MEADOR (1970) "The mind of the physician and the lawyer: a comparison." Alabama Law Rev. 22 (Summer).

Compares thought processes of doctor and lawyer through discussion between two brothers—one a doctor, the other a lawyer.

MERSON, A. (1970) "Meeting legal needs: a new Malthusian dilemma." Denver Law J. 47 (Winter).

Focusing on noncourtroom settings, suggests new role for the modern lawyer within both private and public institutional settings. Concludes by calling for a restructuring of the profession directed toward providing less costly and more efficient legal services in a manner which truly satisfies the heightened demand.

NADER, R. (1970) "Law schools and law firms." Minnesota Law Rev. 54, No. 3.

Analyzes the effect of law school education on the legal profession. Suggests Harvard has done a disservice through use of Socratic method mixed with case method. Accuses law schools of lacking interest in the ills of society.

PORTMAN, S. (1970) "The defense lawyer's new role in the sentencing process." Federal Probation 34 (March).

Presents a summary of the criticisms of defense lawyers and their role in the sentencing process together with a review of the sentencing fundamentals.

STEEVER, F. R., Jr. (1969) "Bargained-for group legal services: aid for the average wage-earner?" Arizona Law Rev. 11 (Winter).

Focuses on what now appears to be possible through collective bargaining under the law in its present state.

A Symposium on Trends in Legal Learning (1970) International Social Sci. J. 22, No. 3.

ABDEL HAMID, M. S. and G. M. TAGELDIM "The Arab-Islamic world."

AOMI, J. "Japan."

ZAMUDIO, H. F. "Mexico."

JIANNINI, M. S. "Italy."

PETERI, Z. "Hungary."

RHEINSTEIN, M. "U.S.A."

POIRIER, J. "The current state of legal ethology and its future tasks."

CHERNILOVSKY, Z. M. "Contemporary views in the USSR on the origin and role of the state."

KNAPP, V. and U. VRECION "The possibility of applying cybernetic methods to law and administration"

(6) PENOLOGY, PREVENTION OF CRIME, DETERRENCE

KRAFT, L. (1970) "Prison disciplinary practices and procedures: is due process provided?" North Dakota Law Rev. 47 (Fall).

Charts the progress of judicial intervention in the running of correctional institutions, reviews present correctional institutions' disciplinary practices and procedures, and recommends changes that should be made in present practices and procedures so that they will conform to predicted judicially imposed standards.

WEXLER, D. B. (1969) "Counseling convicts: the lawyer's role in uncovering legitimate claims." Arizona Law Rev. 11 (Winter).

Reviews the existing programs to determine whether any operational changes could be made to improve the services now being rendered.

WEXLER, D. B. and A. SILVERMAN (1969) "Representing prison inmates: a primer in an emerging dimension of poverty law practice." Arizona Law Rev. 11 (Fall).

Examines and analyzes the basic avenues of relief under local law. Detailed analysis of the remedies available and some of the legal problems likely to arise in the representation of prison inmates.

(7) POLICE ADMINISTRATION AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

ALLINGTON, T. B. (1970) "Preventive detention of the accused before trial." Kansas Law Rev. 19 (Fall).

Examines concept of preventive detention in general and analyzes specific features of the new legislation. Attention is directed to various legal and social considerations with which the preventive detention concept must be reconciled.

AVINS, A. (1970) "Equal protection against unnecessary police violence and the original understanding of the Fourteenth Amendment: a comment." Buffalo Law Rev. 19 (Spring).

Describes the use of the Fourteenth Amendment to restrict police violence when local authorities are either indifferent or sympathetic to police excesses.

BRIGGS, O. G. (1970) "The lawyer's role in criminal justice reform." South Carolina Law Rev. 22 (December).

Emphasizes the need for reform in the criminal justice system and suggests ways in which lawyers can be helpful in the area.

Columbia J. of Law and Social Problems [Note] (1970) "Protection of the accused at police lineups." 6 (September).

Analyzes relevant Supreme Court and lower court decisions and examines what lawyers throughout the country are doing at lineup confrontations. A model set of regulations is presented.

GOODERSON, R. N. (1970) "The interrogation of suspects." Canadian Bar Rev. 48 (May).

Compares the status of confessions in England and the United States which seem to be moving in opposite directions, but neither approach seems entirely satisfactory.

LEIKEN, L. S. (1970) "Police interrogation in Colorado: the implementation of Miranda." Denver Law J. 47.

Empirical research and analysis is presented which deals with the effect of the Miranda decision on the actual interrogation "contest" and the ultimate resolution of that contest in the courtroom.

MEWETT, A. W. (1970) "Law enforcement and the conflict of values?" McGill Law J. 16, No. 1.

Discussion of a report of the Canadian Committee on Corrections centering on a section of the report entitled "Investigation of Offences and Police Powers."

(8) LAW AND THE DISADVANTAGED

ATRENS, J. J. (1970) "Experimental legal services." Univ. of British Columbia Law Rev. 5 (June).

Describes two experimental legal services established in Vancouver—the neighborhood legal advice clinics and the Juvenile Court Programme.

DIENES, C. T. (1970) "To feed the hungry: judicial retrenchment in welfare adjudication." California Law Rev. 58 (May).

Examines the maximum grant provision upheld by the Supreme Court in *Dandridge* v. *Williams* and concludes that it should have been held unconstitutional for failure to conform to the requirements of federal law, as a denial of equal protection and substantive due process.

DIXON, D. F. and D. J. McLAUGHLIN, Jr. (1970) "Low income consumers and the issue of exploitation: a study of chain supermarkets." Social Sci. Q. 51 (September).

No evidence of conscious discrimination against low-income consumers is found in prices of twenty food products in all major Philadelphia chain supermarkets. Authors conclude that it appears that competition benefits consumers in areas of city other than those inhabited by poor.

DORSEN, N. (1970) "The role of the lawyer in America's ghetto society." Texas Law Rev. 49 (December).

Discusses the increase in public service legal work being done by established law firms and full-time public service lawyers' comments on Ralph Nader's proposal that lawyers should temper their efforts by taking public interest into account, and issues relating to the work of public service lawyers.

GOERING, J. M. and R. M. COE (1970) "Cultural vs. situational explanations of the medical behavior of the poor." Social Sci. Q. 51 (September).

Presents evidence and argument concerning whether medical "ghettoization" is voluntary and necessarily related to the subculture of poverty. Concludes that restructuring of the medical care delivery system to recognize the importance of the context of poverty rather than the characteristics of the poor is necessary.

- HANDLER, J. F. and E. J. HOLLINGSWORTH (1970) "Stigma, privacy and other attitudes of welfare recipients." Stanford Law Rev. 22 (November). Defines their measure of feelings of stigma and attempts to relate these feelings of stigma to the background characteristics of the welfare clients.
- HANDLER, J. F. and E. J. HOLLINGSWORTH (1970) "Work, welfare and the Nixon reform proposals." Stanford Law Rev. 22 (April).

 Discusses employment issues at the state and local level, using as an

example the Wisconsin AFDC program as it operated in 1967.

legal profession—through questionnaires.

- HARVEY, C. (1970) "Women in law in Canada." Manitoba Law J. 4, No. 1. Discusses question of whether women are treated equally with men within
- HOLLAND, D. (1969) "Ending poverty—within the system." St. Louis Univ. Law J. 14 (Winter).

Reviews factors which went into funding of antipoverty programs besides desire to alleviate economic deprivation. Also analyzes poverty by family type and suggests program to deal solely with the problem of financial poverty.

MILLER, P. T. and M. SHULENBERGER (1970) "Day to day work in poverty law in a metropolitan area." Univ. of Mississippi-Kansas City Law Rev. 39 (Autumn).

Attempts to describe in capsule form the activities of the civil discussion of the Legal Aid and Defender Society of Greater Kansas City.

ROSE, J. M. (1970) "The war on poverty: lawyers and logistics." Catholic Lawyer 16 (Spring).

Analogizes between primitive countries and ghetto and discusses role of the attorney in giving meaningful assistance to the ghetto and suggests methods to increase that aid. Economic development is process of supplying three tools of community-building—real and personal property, capital, and knowledge which an attorney can help make available.

SILVERBERG, H. M. (1969) "Law school legal aid clinics: a sample plan; their legal status." Univ. of Pennsylvania Law Rev. 117 (April).

Describes organization of successful law school aid clinic. Discussion includes typical modes of clinic transactions with clients and raises certain problems concerning the legal status of the clinics and their activities.

SMITH, A. D. (1970) "The social worker in the legal aid setting: a study of interprofessional relationships." Social Service Rev. 44, No. 2.

Professional relationships between lawyers and social workers employed by a legal service agency were explored.

A Symposium on Poverty in the Land of Wealth: Selected Aspects and Proposed Solutions (1970) J. of Urban Law, No. 1.

DAVIDSON, K. M. "Government role in the economy: implications for the relief of poverty."

RENDLEMON, D. "Juvenile court jurisdiction: Congress' answer to illegitimate children."

PHEMISTER, J. M. and J. L. HILDEBRAND "The use of non-profit corporations and cooperatives for ghetto economic development."

ROSE, J. M. "Low income credit unions and consumer utility deposits: making credit available with community resources."

PALMER, R. G. "Section 23 housing: low-rent housing in private accommodations."

A Symposium on Professionals and the Poor (1970) J. of Social Issues 26 (Summer).

GUTTENTAG, M. "Issue editor."

COHEN, W. J. "Preface: government policy and the poor: past, present, and future." GUTTENTAG, M. "The insolence of office."

LEVINE, M. and A. LEVINE "The more things change: a case history of child guidance clinics."

FREEDMAN, M. "Poor people and the distribution of job opportunities."

HAZARD, G. C., Jr. "Legal problems peculiar to the poor."

WEISS, J. "The law and the poor."

GITTELL, M. "Urban school politics: professionalism vs. reform."

ZURCHER, L. A., Jr. "The poverty board: some consequences of 'maximum feasible participation'."

HERZOG, E. "Social stereotypes and social research."

(9) JUVENILES AND THE LAW

ALPER, B. S. (1969-70) "The children's court at three score and ten: will it survive 'Gault'?" Albany Law Rev. 34, No. 1.

Discusses the ramifications of the Gault decision in terms of how it will effect such things as—prehearing stage (number of cases which will be heard will lessen due to more time spent on each), court hearing—demand for specially trained juvenile court judges and disposition of the case—also discusses alternatives to juvenile court—as practiced in Scandinavia, England, and Scotland.

FOX, S. J. (1970) "Juvenile justice reform." Stanford Law Rev. 22 (June).

Traces important previous juvenile justice reforms and suggests possible limitations on reforms in the post-Gault period.

(10) LAW AND THE MEDICAL SCIENCES

BODENHEIMER, B. M. (1970) "New approaches of psychiatry: implications for divorce reform." Utah Law Rev. 1970 (April).

Describes new developments in psychiatry in relation to American divorce law. Includes discussion of new approaches of psychiatry, the cultural scene, and implications for divorce reform.

CALDWELL, M. E. (1970) "The intersections of medicine and law: bases for future collaboration." Ohio State Law J. 31 (Spring).

Urges more interdisciplinary research between law and medicine to help find solutions to problems of hunger and overpopulation. Suggests various areas in which collaboration is possible under broader categories. National law and international law.

COHRSSEM, J. J. and C. M. LIEBERMAN (1970) "Cannabis: a forensic medical review." Southwestern Law J. 24 (Fall).

Relates medical knowledge about marijuana to legislation concerning it. Presents criticism of existing laws.

SMITH, K. D. and H. S. WINEBERG (1970) "A survey of therapeutic abortion committees." Criminal Law Q. 12 (July).

Therapeutic abortion committees were established in Canada in 1969. Interested in finding out whether there was internal consistency to

decision, and whether discrepancies of significant nature between decision of committees of different hospitals.

(11) CIVIL LIBERTIES, CIVIL RIGHTS, RACE RELATIONS

CASPER, J. D. (1970) "Lawyers before the Supreme Court: civil liberties and civil rights, 1957-66." Stanford Law Rev. 22 (February).

Examines the recruitment and goals of private attorneys who argued civil-liberties and civil-rights cases decided with opinion by the United States Supreme Court during the 1957-66 period.

Columbia J. of Law and Social Problems [Note] (1970) "The Philadelphia Plan: equal employment opportunity in the construction trades." 6 (May).

Detailed discussion of the Philadelphia Plan—the history of job discrimination in America, with special reference to the construction industry, the plan itself, the legal controversy, and alternatives to it.

Columbia J. of Law and Social Problems [Note] (1970) "Public housing and integration: a neglected opportunity." 6 (May).

By building public housing in the urban core area, the government has encouraged segregated housing. Describes present situation in public housing and analyzes conceivable causes, potential consequences, and available solutions.

GERALD, J. E. (1970) "Press-bar relationships: progress since 'Sheppard' and Reardon." Journalism Q. 47 (Summer).

Through mail questionnaire, authors attempted to find out what changes in conditions had taken place in the country in six years since Sheppard and the Reardon Report with respect to pretrial publicity.

LEIKEN, E. M. (1970) "Preferential treatment in the skilled building trades: an analysis of the Philadelphia Plan." Cornell Law Rev. 56 (November).

Describes the background of the Philadelphia Plan, its policy considerations, and its legality. Concludes that it is justified by the special obstacles to equal employment opportunity which exist in the building trade.

A Symposium on the Perspectives on the NAACP and CORE, 1964-1968 (1970) Soc. Sci. Q. 51 (June).

RUDWICK, E. and A. MEIER "Organizational structures and goal succession."

YANCEY, W. L. "Organizational structures and environments: a second look at the NAACP and CORE."

JONES, M. H. and A. WILLENGHAM "The white custodians of the black experience: a reply to Rudwick and Meier."

RUDWICK, E. and A. MEIER "NAACP and CORE: some additional theoretical considerations."

A Symposium: Equal Employment Opportunity: Comparative Community Experience (1970) Industrial Relations 9 (May).

CASSELL, F. "Chicago 1960-1970: one small step forward."

HELSTAND, D. L. "Equal employment in New York City."

MARSHALL, T. R. and A. V. ADAMS "Negro employment in Memphis."

DOERRINGER, P. B. and M. J. PIORE "Equal employment opportunity in Boston." SCHMIDT, F. H. "Los Angeles: show, little substance."

WILLHELM, S. M. (1970) "A sociological perspective of racism and the Supreme Court." Catholic Lawyer 16 (Spring).

Traces history of racism in America—argues that equality is a racial myth. Even without legal barriers to integration the Negro is at great disadvantage: "the nation grants full equality to any Negro made irrelevant by the ultimate success of its economic motive."

(12) SOCIAL WELFARE AND RELATED COMMUNITY PROBLEMS

A Symposium on National Population Programs and Policy—Social and Legal Implications (1970) Villanova Law Rev. 15 (Summer).

GRANNELLA, D. A. "Introduction."

SCHULTZ, C. S. "Federal population policy: a decade of change."

TIEN, H. Y. "National population problems and standardization of family size."

WISHIK, S. M. "Population programs and policy."

DRIVER, E. D. "Population policies of state governments in the United States: some preliminary observations."

MEANS, C. C., Jr. "Constitutional aspects of a national population policy."

(13) SOCIAL CONFLICT AND SOCIAL CONTROL

BONNIE, R. J. and C. H. WHITEBREAD, II (1970) "The forbidden fruit and the tree of knowledge: an inquiry into the legal history of American marijuana prohibition."

Through a historical analysis of the marijuana laws, authors hope to refocus the debate on the subject. An understanding of the laws might modulate the challengers' hostile accusations and promote in legislators an awareness of their own responsibility.

BYRN, R. M. (1970) "Abortion-on-demand: whose morality?" Notre Dame Lawyer 46 (Fall).

Explores the jurisprudence of abortion on demand to determine whose morality is being enacted into law when abortion laws are abolished.

Case Western Reserve Law Rev. [Note] (1970) "Abortion reform: history, status and prognosis." 21 (April).

Traces the historical conditions that precipitated abortion restrictions; scrutinizes legislative efforts to render the laws more responsive to modern conditions, to examine the judicial response to this legislation and finally, to project in light of the most recent decision the future course of abortion proscriptions.

COUCH, H. (1970) "Marriage law reform—a comment." Tulane Law Rev. 44 (February).

Begins with premise that divorce is unfortunate. Proposes to attempt to predict unhappy marriages by studying factors in divorce. Discusses three factors—forced marriages, youthful marriages, and fact that mate selection is often based on unconscious motivation.

CRANTON, R. C. (1969) "Driver behavior and legal sanctions." Michigan Law Rev. 67 (January).

Considers the general understanding of legal scholars and criminologists regarding the deterrent effect of legal sanctions; summarizes current knowledge concerning the effects of legal sanctions in controlling driver behavior; and evaluates briefly the methods available for the development of needed new knowledge.

Forum on Points of Rebellion (1970) Brooklyn Law Rev. 37 (Fall).

EMERSON, T. I. LANDYNSKI, J. W. JAFFE, L. L. HOOK, S. FORKOSCH, M. D.

Initiated to discuss critically the book by Hon. William O. Douglas.

GREEN, L. C. (1970) "Law and morality in a changing society." Univ. of Toronto Law J. 20, No. 4.

Traces the relationship between law and morality throughout history. If law lags too far behind morality it will become obsolescent. If this happens too often the society will abandon respect for the rule of law.

KRANTZ, S. and W. D. KRAMER (1970) "The urban crisis and crime." Boston Univ. Law Rev. 50 (Summer).

Attempts to identify some specific weaknesses in existing approaches to prevention of crime, describes some of the ways in which effective strategies may be developed and provides examples of early priorities that may be selected.

MAYERS, T. G. (1970) "Abortion laws: a study in social change." San Diego Law Rev. 7 (May).

Discusses briefly the history of anti-abortion legislation and the impetus for change to more liberalized laws. Presents some of the problems inherent in abortion on demand—such as delay, which makes it both more dangerous and more costly.

RONFELDT, S. I. and D. J. CLIFFORD (1970) "Judicial enforcement of the housing and urban development acts." Hastings Law J. 21 (January).

Investigates what types of statutory policies should be enforced in the area of public housing and what enforcement methods are possible.

A Symposium on the Campus Crisis (1970) William and Mary Law Rev. 11 (Spring).

FINCH, R. H. "Foreword."

HUMPHREY, H. H. "Student confrontations: are they inevitable?"

McCAUGHEY, R. A. "The usable past: a study of the Harvard College Rebellion of 1834."

GREEN, E. "The university and society."

SMITH, F. B. "Campus unrest: illusion and reality."

A Symposium on Collective Violence (1970) Annals of Amer. Academy of Pol. and Social Sci. 391 (September).

SHORT, J. F., Jr. and M. E. WOLFGANG "Introduction and overview."

GRIMSHAW, A. D. "Interpreting collective violence: an argument for the importance of social structure."

MARX, G. T. "Issueless riots."

CURRIE, E. and J. H. SKOLNICK "A critical note on conception of collective behavior."

SMELSNER, N. J. "Two critics in search of a bias: a response to Currie and Skolnick."

NIEBURG, H. L. "Agonistics-rituals of conflict."

GRAHAN, H. D. "The paradox of American violence: a historical commentary."

LEVY, S. G. "The psychology of political activity."

GAMSON, W. A. and J. McEVOY "Police violence and its public support."

ROSSI, P. H. and R. A. BERK "Local political leadership and popular discontent in the ghetto."

CAMPBELL, J. I. "The usefulness of commission studies of collective violence."

A Symposium on Ghetto Riots (1970) J. of Social Issues (Winter).

ALLEN, V. L. "Issue editor."

ALLEN, V. L. "Toward understanding riots: some perspectives."

MARX, G. T. "Civil disorder and the agents of social control."

CAPLAN, N. "The new ghetto man: a review of recent empirical studies."

FORWARD, J. R. and J. R. WILLIAMS "Internal-external control and black militancy."

TOMLENSON, T. M. "Ideological foundations for Negro action: a comparative analysis of militant and non-militant views of the Los Angeles riot."

SEARS, D. O. and J. B. McCONAHAY "Racial socialization, comparison levels and the Watts Riot."

FOGELSON, R. M. "Violence and grievances: reflections on the 1960's riots."

IGLITZIN, L. B. "Violence and American democracy."

ALDRICH, H. and A. J. REISS, Jr. "The effect of civil disorder on small business in the inner city."

A Symposium on Governmental Compensation for Victims of Violence (1970) Southern California Law Rev. 43 (Fall).

WOLFGANG, M. E. "Social responsibility for violent behavior."

LAMBORN, L. L. "Remedies for victims of crime."

SCHAFER, S. "Victim compensation and responsibility."

CHAPPELL, D. "The emergence of Australian schemes to compensate victims of crime."

SHANK, W. A. "Aid to victims of violent crimes in California."

YARBOROUGH, R. W. "The battle for a federal violent crimes compensation act: the genesis of S. 9."

WEEKS, K. M. "The New Zealand criminal inquiries compensation scheme."

A Symposium on Reflections on the Social Scientists' Role in Studying Civil Violence (1970) Social Sci. Q. 51 (September).

HADDEN, J. K. "Introduction."

FORD, W. F. and J. H. MOORE "Additional evidence on the social characteristics of riot cities."

DOWNES, B. T. "A critical reexamination of the social and political characteristics of riot cities."

HAHN, H. and FEAGIN, J. R. "Rank and file versus Congressional perceptions of ghetto riots."

MOORE, C. H. "The politics of urban violence: policy outcomes in Winston-Salem."

(14) JURISPRUDENCE, LEGAL PROCESS, BEHAVIORAL SCIENCE THEORY

BIRMINGHAM, R. L. (1970) "A model of criminal process: game theory and law." Cornell Law Rev. 56 (November).

Attempts to use techniques of game theory to isolate minimal attributes of problems familiar in criminal law. Constructs model indicating the impact

of the criminal law on the actions of prospective malefactors and on the welfare of society as a whole. Explores implications of model for public policy.

MURPHY, C. F., Jr. (1970) "Social criticism and legal philosophy: some reflections on law and the new politics." St. John's Law Rev. 45 (October).

Discusses Marcuse and Harrington, tries to identify some of the ways in which legal philosophy is subordinate to social theory, and suggests new directions for jurisprudence.

STANMEYER, W. (1970) "The jurisprudence of radical change: Herbert Marcuse's 'great refusal' vs. political due process." St. Johns Law Rev. 45 (October).

Relates ideas of Marcuse to the rule of law and suggests that lawyers should be more familiar with his ideas, which are antithetical to modern jurisprudence.

(15) ADMINISTRATIVE LAW, PLANNING, AND POLITICS

(16) LAW, THE ECONOMY, AND TECHNOLOGY

CARSON, W. G. (1970) "Some sociological aspects of strict liability and the enforcement of factory legislation." Modern Law Rev. 33 (July).

Discussion of relationship between law and sociology in the field of liability. Concludes that "moral fault" played a significant part in shaping the action taken against offenders.

Columbia J. of Law and Social Problems [Note] (1970) "Truth in packaging under the Fair Packaging and Labeling Act: an untapped source of consumer protection." 6 (May).

Contends that Fair Packaging and Labeling Act (FPLA) can be made workable. Shows why it is not yet particularly effective and how it could be made more effective. Examines provisions of the act in relation to abuses they are intended to control and certain practical difficulties which presently make it impossible to effectuate act. Alternatives are also discussed.

A Symposium on Workmen's Compensation (1970-71) Kentucky Law J. 59 (Fall).

Introduction

HOROWITZ, S. B. "Worldwide Workmen's Compensation trends."

- LOWERY, M. R. "Federal encroachment into the historically state administered Workmen's Compensation program."
- PAGE, J. A. and G. B. SELLERS "Occupational safety and health: environmental justice for the forgotten American."

(17) FOLK AND NATIVE LAW

(18) INTERNATIONAL AND COMPARATIVE LAW

MUKHERYI, P. N. (1970) "A study in induced social change: an Indian experiment." Human Organization 29 (Fall).

An investigation of "gramdan" villages in India. Gramdan means "village-in-gift" and is a method by which private property becomes commercial property.

(19) LAW AND THE ENVIRONMENT

McCARTHY, R. D. (1970) "Recent legal developments in environmental defense." Buffalo Law Rev. 19 (Spring).

Considers the role of the lawyer in defending our environment. Must use both conventional legal tools such as nuisance and injunction in tort and also must devise new legal remedies.

A Symposium on Ecology (1970) Utah Law Rev. 1970 (June).

BLISS, R. L. "The designed environment and the law."

COHEN, B. S. "The Constitution, the public trust doctrine, and the environment."

STREET, J. C. "Agriculture and the pollution problem."

WINDER, J. S. "Citizen groups, the law and the environment."

BOOKS

- ABBOTT, D. W. et al. (1969) Police, Politics and Race: The New York City Referendum on Civil Review. New York: American Jewish Committee.
- ADAMS, A. B. (1970) Eleventh Hour: A Hard Look at Conservation and the Future. New York: Putnam's.
- ADAMS, L. P. (1969) The Public Employment Service in Transition, 1933-1968: The Evolution of a Placement Service Into a Manpower Agency. Ithaca, N.Y.: New York State School of Industrial and Labor Relations.
- ADDE, L. (1969) Nine Cities: The Anatomy of Downtown Renewal: A Retrospective Review of Nine Cities in Which Panel Studies Were Made by ULI-the Urban Land Institute. Washington, D.C.: Urban Land Institute.

- American Bar Association, Advisory Committee on Pretrial Proceedings. (1969) Standards Relating to Discovery and Procedure Before Trial; Tentative Draft. Chicago: American Bar Association.
- American Bar Association, Advisory Committee on Sentencing and Review. (1969) Standards Relating to Criminal Appeals; Tentative Draft. Chicago: American Bar Association.
- American Bar Association and Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law Institute, 1968. (1968) Chicago: Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights Under Law.
- American Bar Association, Special Committee on Evaluation of Ethical Standards. (1969) Code of Professional Responsibility. Chicago: American Bar Association.
- American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research. (1969) Bail Reform Act: An Analysis of Proposed Amendments and an Alternative. Washington, D.C.
- American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research. (1969) Proposals for a Small Claims Tax Court. Washington, D.C.
- American Law Institute (1969) Model Code of Pre-Arraignment Procedure. Tentative Draft no. 2. Philadelphia.
- ANDREWS, J. A. (1968) Criminal Justice. Cathays Park, Cardiff: Univ. of Wales Press.
- ARNOLD, W. R. (1970) Juveniles on Parole: A Sociological Perspective. Westminster, Md.: Random House.
- ARON, J. B. (1969) The Quest for Regional Cooperation: A Study of the New York Metropolitan Regional Council. Berkeley & Los Angeles: Univ. of California Press.
- BALDWIN, M. and J. K. PAGE, Jr. [eds.] (1970) Law and the Environment. New York: Walker.
- BARNETT, M. J. (1969) The Politics of Legislation: The Rent Act of 1957. London: Weidenfeld and Nicolson.
- BARTON, R. F. (1969, 1919) Ifugao Law. With a New Foreword by Fred Eggan. Berkeley: Univ. of California Press.
- BASKIN, J. (1969) Urban Racial Violence in the Twentieth Century. Beverly Hills, Calif.: Glencoe Press.
- BRECKENRIDGE, A. C. (1970) Congress Against the Court. Lincoln: Univ. of Nebraska Press.
- CALLAHAN, D. (1970) Abortion: Law, Choice and Morality. New York: Macmillan.
- CALNE, R. Y. (1970) Gift of Life: Observations on Organ Transplantation. New York: Basic Books.

- CLARK, R. (1970) Crime in America: Observations on its Nature, Causes, Control and Correction. New York: Simon and Schuster.
- COONS, J. E., W. H. CLUNE III and S. D. SUGARMAN (1970) Private Wealth and Public Education. Cambridge, Mass.: Harvard Univ. Press.
- DEMING, R. (1970) Man and Society: Criminal Law at Work. New York: Hawthorn.
- DODGE, L., R. HOTCHKISS and R. NADER (1970) What to Do With Your Bad Car. New York: Grossman.
- DOUGLAS, J. D. [ed.] (1970) Crime and Justice in American Society. Indianapolis: Bobbs-Merrill.
- EDELMAN, S. [ed.] (1970) Law of Air Pollution Control, Environmental Science Services. Stamford, Conn.: Environmental Science Service Division.
- ELLINWOOD, R. M. Jr. and W. L. TWINING [comps.] Karl Llewellyn Papers: A Guide to the Collection. Chicago: Univ. of Chicago Law School Library.
- FORD, S. (1970) American Legal System: Its Dynamics and Limits. St. Paul: West.
- FORER, L. G. (1970) 'No One Will Lissen' How Our Legal System Brutalizes the Youthful Poor. New York: Day.
- FRIEDMANN, W. G. and J. F. GARNER (1970) Government Enterprise: A Comparative Study. New York: Columbia Univ. Press.
- GARDINER, J. A. (1969) Traffic and the Police: Variations in Law-Enforcement Policy. Cambridge, Mass.: Harvard Univ. Press.
- GOLDSTEIN, J. E. and A. S. GOLDSTEIN (1970) Crime, Law and Society. New York: Free Press.
- GORECKI, J. (1970) Divorce in Poland: A Contribution to the Sociology of Law. Translated from the Polish. The Hague: Mouton.
- HAMILTON, A. (1969) The Law Practice of Alexander Hamilton, Vol. 2: Documents and Commentary. [Edited by Julius Goebel, Jr.] New York: Columbia Univ. Press.
- HIESTAND, D. L. (1970) Discrimination in Employment: An Appraisal of the Research [by] Dale L. Hiestand. Ann Arbor: Institute of Labor and Industrial Relations, Univ. of Michigan-Wayne State Univ.
- INBAU, F. E. and J. R. THOMPSON (1970) Criminal Law and Its Administration. Mineola, N.Y.: Foundation Press.

- JONES, H. W. (1969) The Efficacy of Law: 1968 Rosenthal Lectures. Evanston, Ill.: Northwestern Univ. Press.
- KANOWITZ, L. (1970) Poem is a Four-Letter Word. Lawrence, Kansas: Coronado Press.
- KEARNY, E. N. (1970) Thurman Arnold, Social Critic: The Satirical Challenge to Orthodoxy. Albuquerque: Univ. of New Mexico Press.
- KNUDTEN, R. D. [comp.] (1970) Crime, Criminology, and Contemporary Society. Homewood, Ill.: Dorsey Press.
- LAMBERT, J. (1970) Crime, Police, and Race Relations: A Study of Birmingham. London: Oxford Univ. Press.
- LEVIN, M. B. and N. A. ABEND (1970) Bureaucrats in Collision: Five Case Studies in Area Transportation Planning. Cambridge, Mass.: MIT Press.
- LIEBERMAN, J. K. (1970) Tyranny of the Experts: How Professionals are Closing the Open Society. New York: Walker.
- LINDBERG, L. N. and S. A. SCHEINGOLD (1970) Europe's Would-Be Polity: Patterns of Change in the European Community. Englewood Cliffs, N.J.: Prentice-Hall.
- LOBENTHAL, J. (1970) Power and Put-on: The Law in America. New York: Outerbridge & Dienstfrey.
- LYONS, G. M. (1969) The Uneasy Partnership: Social Science and the Federal Government in the Twentieth Century. New York: Russell Sage. Foundation.
- MARMOR, T. R. (1970) Politics of Medicare. New York: Humanities.
- MARU, O. (1970) Digest of Bar Association Ethics Opinions [with the assistance of R. L. Clough]. Chicago: American Bar Foundation.
- MUELLER, G. O. W. (1969) Crime, Law, and the Scholars: A History of Scholarship in American Criminal Law. Seattle: Univ. of Washington Press. MYERS, R. J. (1970) Medicare. Homewood, Ill.: Irwin.
- NIEDERHOFFER, A. and A. BLUMBERG [eds.] (1970) Ambivalent Force: Perspectives on the Police. Waltham, Mass.: Ginn, College Division.
- RICHARDSON, J. F. (1970) The New York Police: Colonial Times to 1901. New York: Oxford Univ. Press.
- RIDGEWAY, J. (1970) Politics of Ecology. New York: Dutton.
- ROHERTY, J. M. (1970) Decisions of Robert S. McNamara: A Study of the Role of the Secretary of Defense. Coral Gables, Fla.: Univ. of Miami Press.

- SUSSMAN, M. B., J. N. CATES and D. T. SMITH (1970) Family and Inheritance. New York: Basic Books.
- United States Congress, House Select Committee on Crime (1970) Crime in America—Youth in Trouble. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- United States Congress, Senate Committee on Commerce (1970) Consumer Protection Act. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- United States Congress, Senate Committee on Finance (1970) Family Assistance Act of 1970. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- United States Congress, Senate Committee on Finance (1970) Medicare and Medicaid: Problems, Issues, and Alternatives; Report of the Staff Committee on Finance, United States Senate. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- United States Congress, Senate Select Committee on Equal Educational Opportunity (1970) Equal Educational Opportunity. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- United States President's Commission on an All-Volunteer Armed Force (1970) Report. Riverside, N.J.: Macmillan.
- United States President's Task Force on Women's Rights and Responsibilities. (1970) A Matter of Simple Justice: The Report of the President's Task Force on Women's Rights and Responsibilities. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Government Printing Office.
- VOLKOMER, W. E. (1970) Passionate Liberal: The Political and Legal Ideas of Jerome Frank. The Hague: Nijhoff.
- WARREN, E. (1970) 'All Men are Created Equal.' New York: Association of the Bar of the City of New York.
- WIDMER, E. J. R. [comp.] (1970) Freedom and Culture: Literary Censorship in the 70's. Belmont, Calif.: Wadsworth.
- ZASHIN, E. M. (1971) Civil Disobedience and Democratic Theory. New York: Macmillan.
- ZILE, Z. L. (1970) Ideas and Forces in Soviet Legal History. Madison, Wis.: College Printing & Pub.